

South Dakota Board of Nursing

4305 S. Louise Avenue Suite 201
Sioux Falls, SD 57106-3115
(605) 362-2760 ◆ Fax: 362-2768 ◆ www.nursing.sd.gov

Advanced Practice Nursing Advisory Committee Meeting

Unapproved DRAFT Minutes¹ Friday, August 23, 2024 Microsoft Teams Meeting

Members Present	Members Absent:
Tammi Chaney, CNM, CNP, Women's Health	
Lisa VanGerpen, CNM	
Brandi Pravecek, CNP, Family	BON Staff Present:
Jenifer Reitsma, CNP, Pediatric	Lindsay Olson, MS, RN, CNP, Nursing Practice Consultant
Sarah Schryvers, CNP, Family	Linda Young, RN, MS, FRE, Executive Director
Carol Stewart, CNP, Family, Psych-Mental Health	
Dustin Delaney, CRNA	
Brian Kvamme, CRNA	Guests Present:
Kay Foland, CNS, CNP, Psych-Mental Health	Melissa DeNoon, SD PDMP Program Director
Lynn White, CNS, Adult	

Agenda

- 1. Call to Order: 9:00 a.m. on August 23, 2024. Introductions were shared by members, staff, and guests present. Olson provided the opportunity for guests to provide comments and explained that attendees may address the committee throughout the meeting.
- 2. Minutes from August 25, 2023 were approved unanimously.
- 3. Advanced Practice Nursing Advisory Committee Membership:
 - a. Committee roster of members reviewed, directed to provide updates to Olson.
 - b. Committee Appointments: Olson reported that the Board of Nursing reappointed Brandi Pravecek, CNP and Sarah Schryvers, CNP to a 2nd term at the Board's August 6, 2024 meeting. Olson informed members that Foland's 3rd term ends 10/2024 and VanGerpen is not seeking reappointment. Olson thanked Foland and VanGerpen for their time and expertise in serving on the committee. VanGerpen commented that she would serve a third term if needed.
 - **Action:** Olson will continue to advertise for open CNS and CNM positions. Applicants will be shared with the Board of Nursing at the November 2024 meeting.
- **4. SD APRN Workforce:** Olson provided APRN active licensure data. The number of actively licensed CNPs continues to grow; CRNA and CNM numbers show positive growth, and CNS numbers continue to decrease. White provided an update on Augustana's CNS program enrollment.
- 5. SD Prescription Drug Monitoring Program (PDMP): An update was provided by DeNoon. All SD controlled substance prescribers must register with the SD PDMP program. DeNoon shared information on PDMP utilization by SD CNPs, CNMs, and CRNAs, prescriber report features, and the *PharmaDrop Drug Take-Back Program*.

Action: Per request of members, DeNoon will provide a copy of her presentation slides to Olson who will share with committee members.

^{11-27-1.17.} Draft minutes of public meeting to be available--Exceptions--Violation as misdemeanor. The unapproved, draft minutes of any public meeting held pursuant to § 1-25-1 that are required to be kept by law shall be available for inspection by any person within ten business days after the meeting. However, this section does not apply if an audio or video recording of the meeting is available to the public on the governing body's website within five business days after the meeting. A violation of this section is a Class 2 misdemeanor. However, the provisions of this section do not apply to draft minutes of contested case proceedings held in accordance with the provisions of chapter 1-26.

2023 OOH CNM Report: Olson provided a report on out-of-hospital (OOH) births attended by SD CNMs. Since 2008, 1,132 women requested an OOH birth, 86.8% delivered OOH. In 2023, 18 CNMs signed the Board of Nursing's OOH Birth Practice Agreement to attend OOH births; 12 were active. A total of 228 women requested an OOH birth, 203 delivered OOH, 15 were referred for a hospital birth, and 10 were transported during labor to a hospital. VanGerpen inquired if this report is peer reviewed or informational only for the Board of Nursing. Olson informed the committee that quality review data submission is a requirement in ARSD 20:62:03:10 for those CNMs attending OOH births.

7. South Dakota and National Legislative/Rules Updates:

- a. Olson shared an update on the adopted new and revised rules on RN and LPN nursing practice in ARSD Chapter 20:48:04 that went into effect on 12/10/23. Discussion was held on various LPN nursing interventions and tasks.
- b. Olson and Young shared information on the recently adopted APRN compact. The compact allows a qualified APRN to hold one multistate license and to practice on that license in other member states. SD became the fourth state to join the APRN compact along with North Dakota, Delaware, and Utah. A total of seven states must adopt the compact before it becomes effective. Members discussed AANP opposition towards the APRN compact.
- Olson shared 2024 SD legislative changes that impacted APRNs, including:
 - HB 1028 which classifies xylazine as a schedule III-controlled substance, establishes permissible uses in veterinary medicine, and declared an emergency as this substance has led to fatal drug overdoses when mixed
 - SB 198 which authorizes a licensed health care professional to prescribe and distribute glucagon to public or private schools for administration to a student who has diabetes and is experiencing severe hypoglycemia;
 - SB 10 which requires a practitioner who issues medical cannabis certification to provide electronic notification of the certification to a patient's primary or referring provider;
 - SB 11 which prohibits a practitioner from referring a patient to a medical cannabis clinic with which the practitioner or immediate family member has a financial relationship; and
 - SB 63 & 64 which revises provisions related to licensure and regulation of ambulance and emergency medical services. Nurse practitioners may be eligible to provide supervision of EMS personnel or be the program director of an ambulance services if granted a waiver due to hardship.
- 8. National Nursing Association Updates: White reported that the National Association of Clinical Nurse Specialists (NACNS) is focused on increasing CNS program enrollment and ensuring strong support for evidence-based practice.

Action: Reitsma requested information on CNS and CNP role comparison. White and Olson will find resource information and send to members.

9. Open Dialog on APRN Practice, Roles, Activities:

- Olson shared information from the U.S. Food & Drug Administration (FDA) regarding potential risks associated with injectable compounded drug products containing semaglutide or tirzepatide. These compounded products have not been approved by the FDA and there have been reports of adverse events. The FDA noted that they have received reports of some prescribers starting patients on doses higher than recommended and following shorter titration schedules which could lead to negative outcomes. Olson informed members that a link to the FDA alert can be found on the Board's website.
- b. Olson provided information on the Board's dermatological procedures advisory statement that is currently being updated. Olson informed members that they will be given the opportunity to provide input on the revised document. Olson also encouraged members to contact her with any APRN practice topics of interest to explore at future meetings.
- 10. Next Meeting: August 22, 2025, 9:00 A.M. 11:00 A.M.
- **11. Adjournment:** 10:45 a.m.

^{11-27-1.17.} Draft minutes of public meeting to be available--Exceptions--Violation as misdemeanor. The unapproved, draft minutes of any public meeting held pursuant to § 1-25-1 that are required to be kept by law shall be available for inspection by any person within ten business days after the meeting. However, this section does not apply if an audio or video recording of the meeting is available to the public on the governing body's website within five business days after the meeting. A violation of this section is a Class 2 misdemeanor. However, the provisions of this section do not apply to draft minutes of contested case proceedings held in accordance with the provisions of chapter 1-26.